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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURTFOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS(HOUSTON DIVISION)JAMIE LEIGH JONES §Plaintiffs, §§vs. § CIVIL ACTION NO. 4:07-cv-2719§HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a §KBR KELLOGG BROWN & ROOT §  (KBR);  KELLOGG BROWN & ROOT§SERVICES, INC.; KELLOGG  §BROWN & ROOT INTERNATIONAL,§INC.; KELLOGG BROWN & ROOT, § LLC; KELLOGG BROWN & ROOT, § INC.; KELLOGG BROWN & ROOT, §S. de R.L.; KELLOGG BROWN & §ROOT (KBR), INC.; KBR §TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.; §OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE §SERVICES, LTD.; ERIC ILER, §CHARLES BOARTZ; and SEVERAL §JOHN DOE RAPISTS §Defendants. § JURY TRIAL DEMANDEDTHIRD AMENDED COMPLAINTNOW COMES, Jamie Leigh Jones, and files this suit against HalliburtonCompany d/b/a KBR Kellogg Brown & Root (KBR), Kellogg Brown & RootServices, Inc., Kellogg Brown & Root International, Inc., Kellogg Brown & RootLLC, Kellogg Brown & Root, Inc., Kellogg Brown & Root, S. de R.L., KelloggBrown & Root (KBR), Inc., KBR Technical Services, Inc. (hereinafter, collectively
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“KBR”); Overseas Administrative Services (OAS); Eric Iler, Charles Boartz, andSeveral other attackers, whose identities are currently only known as “John Doe”,complaining about the sexual harassment, sexual discrimination, intentionalinfliction of emotional distress, sexual assault, rape, physical injury and otherpersonal injuries to Jamie Leigh Jones.For clarification, this case is not about a pinch on the backside, or a fewpolitically incorrect jests at the office.  Jamie Leigh Jones was first forced into asexual relationship, against her will, with her supervisor, or risk losing her job at atime when her mother was incapable of supporting them and Jamie was the solesource of income.  After escaping that environment, she was harassed, andthreatened in Baghdad, before she was ultimately the subject of a brutal sexualattack by several attackers who first drugged her, then repeatedly raped and injuredher, both physically and emotionally.  This attack never would have occurred butfor the “boys will be boys” attitude that permeated the environment that defendantsfirst created, then failed to warn Jamie about – an environment that was excused, ifnot encouraged, and of which the defendants had ample prior notice.NATURE OF THE CASE1. This is a Texas diversity, fraud, personal injury and sexualharassment, rape, retaliation, and false arrest case arising out of Jamie Jones’
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deployment in support of Operation Iraqi Freedom with Brown & Root Services, aDivision of Kellogg Brown & Root, Inc. (KBR), and subsidiary of HalliburtonCompany, in Houston, Texas, and with OAS, another subsidiary of Halliburton,while at Camp Hope, Baghdad, Iraq. At all times relevant to these allegations,Camp Hope was under the direct control of Defendants, Halliburton and the UnitedStates Government, which operated Camp Hope in connection with operations ofthe Department of State, and which has therefore waived sovereign immunity as toclaims such as the one at bar.  Charles Boartz and the other rapists were individualsworking for Halliburton and under the joint control of Halliburton and the UnitedStates Government. PARTIES2. Plaintiff, Jamie Leigh Jones (hereinafter, “Jamie”), is the wife ofJoseph Daigle a member of the United States Armed Forces, currently stationed atCoronado Island, California, who began working for KBR as an administrativeassistant in 2004 at the age of 19 years, and executed her contract of employmentwith Overseas Administrative Services, Ltd. in Houston, Texas on July 21, 2005, atthe age of 20.  3. Defendant, Halliburton Company d/b/a KBR Kellogg Brown & Root,(hereinafter, “Halliburton”) is a Texas corporation headquartered in Houston,
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Harris County, Texas.  It contracts for services related to government contractsthroughout Texas, the United States, and Worldwide.  Halliburton conductsbusiness throughout the State of Texas and is, thus, amenable to jurisdiction in thisState.  This defendant may be served with process by service upon its registeredagent, CT Corporation System, 1021 Main Street, Suite 1150, Houston, Texas77002.4. Defendants, Kellogg Brown & Root Services, Inc., Kellogg Brown &Root International, Inc., Kellogg Brown & Root LLC, Kellogg Brown & Root,Inc., Kellogg Brown & Root, S. de R.L., Kellogg Brown & Root (KBR), Inc., KBRTechnical Services, Inc., (hereinafter, collectively “KBR”) is a Texas corporationwith principle offices in Houston, Harris County, Texas.  It contracts for servicesrelated to government contracts throughout Texas, the United States, andWorldwide.  KBR conducts business throughout the State of Texas and is, thus,amenable to jurisdiction in this State.  This defendant may be served with serviceof process by service upon its registered agent, CT Corporation System, 1021 MainStreet, Suite 1150, Houston, Texas 77002.5. Defendant, Overseas Administrative Services, Ltd., is a CaymanIslands corporation doing business in the State of Texas with Halliburton, whichfailed to register with the Secretary of State in Texas as a company doing business
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in Texas.  Therefore, service on OAS will be by service on the Secretary of State ofthe State of Texas, and upon Shadow Sloan, Esq., who, on information and belief,is the attorney representing that corporation.  On information and belief, thiscorporation was set up as an off-shore tax shelter for Halliburton. (previouslyattached to original petition)6. Eric Iler is an individual who, on information and belief, is a residentof the state of Texas, who was employed by Halliburton/KBR and/or KBR at alltimes relevant to this suit, and whose last known address is:  110 Hillside, Liberty,Texas 77575.  7. Charles Boartz is an individual who, on information and belief, is aresident of the state of Florida, who was employed by Halliburton/KBR and/orKBR at all times relevant to this suit, and whose last known address is:  9853 CreetCircle, Navarre, Florida 32566.8. The several “John Doe Rapists” are individuals who, on informationand belief, were Halliburton employees who were employed as firefighters byHalliburton in Iraq.9. The United States of America, is a governmental entity who isreviewing a Federal Torts Claims Act, and is not currently before this court, as thetime has not run from the filing of the Federal Tort Claim for the filing of a suit.
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The United States is anticipated to return as a party at the expiration of that time-frame. 
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JURISDICTION, VENUE AND LIMITATIONS10. Jurisdiction is based on diversity of citizenship and federal question.28 U.S.C. §1332.  The amount in controversy is substantially in excess of Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000), exclusive of interest and costs.  The Defendantsregularly conduct business within the district, and a significant portion of theevents giving rise to this lawsuit occurred in the Southern District.  Therefore,venue is permissible in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391. Because of thenational significance of the matters at issue in this case, Plaintiffs believe that thedetermination of this case involves issues of unique federal interest, and raisesquestions of law “arising under the Constitution, laws or treaties of the UnitedStates.”  28 U.S.C. §1391.11. Because this case involves various plaintiffs and various defendants,federal questions of law, and issues that should be resolved at one forum, it isproperly before this court, despite the fact that an arbitration agreement purportingto bind some issues exists in this case.  Even if the arbitration is binding as againstJamie to some defendants on some issues, it does not prevent her claims as toothers.  Moreover, claims against individual defendants are not bound by anyagreement whatsoever, making those claims properly before this Court.  Plaintiff’srespectfully ask this court to exercise its discretion to bring all known causes of
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action to one forum – this court, in the interest of judicial economy, justice andfairness to the parties. FACTS12. It has become necessary to file this suit as a result of the followingfacts. 13. Between 2004 and July 21, 2005, Jamie was employed byHalliburton/KBR as an administrative assistant in Houston, Texas, at that time, herimmediate supervisor, Eric Iler, was aware of Jamie’s sick mother at homefollowing a complicated surgical procedure with a difficult post-surgical course,and utilized his influence as Jamie’s direct supervisor to extract sexual favor fromher. 14. Eventually, Jamie obtained evidence of the sexual harassment by hersupervisor and demanded that he remove her to another Halliburton department.  15. Once removed from the oversight of Eric Iler, Jamie was transferredto work for Overseas Administrative Services, Ltd., in Houston, Texas, beginningJuly 21, 2005.  She was then transferred to an assignment at Camp Hope, Iraq.16. Upon learning that Jamie was moving to Iraq, Eric Iler attempted togain a position in Iraq as a supervisor over Jamie.  Jamie reported this concern toFrederick Heard, a Halliburton operations manager, who assured Jamie that Eric
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Iler would be assigned another section.  Eric Iler then informed Jamie that hewould be putting a “bad recommendation” in her file, which he did, by writingsuch a letter to William Tompkins, her subsequent supervisor, in an apparentattempt to thwart her transfer.17. Beginning July 25, 2005, Jamie lived and worked at Camp Hope,Baghdad, Iraq.  Jamie was housed, during her off-duty, non-working hours, in atwo-story living quarters which consisted of a room on a co-ed floor in apredominantly male barracks.  This facility was under the direct control andsupervision of defendants, HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBRTECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR and THE UNITED STATES, herein.Jamie’s room was located at the end of a hall on the second floor.  There was nobathroom on that floor - which forced Jones to walk past several men’s rooms inorder to get to the women’s restroom on the first floor, enduring “catcalls” andpartially dressed men.  The room’s walls did not completely protect her space, asthey did not rise all the way to the ceiling.  It is worthy of noting that the use ofalcoholic beverages was permitted at this location at this time, and several of themen were often drinking.  18. On July 27, 2005, Jamie complained to several Halliburton and KBR
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managers, employees, servants, agent, officers and/or representatives about thesexually hostile living conditions and requested that she be housed in a saferlocation.  This report was made to Houston and Iraq supervisory personnel, andJamie was simply advised to “go to the spa.”  No action was taken nor was anyconsideration made regarding her untenable and dangerous living conditions. 19.  Tragically, on the evening of July 28, 2005, during her off-duty, non-employment hours, Jamie was drugged (by what was believed to be Rohypnol)without her knowledge outside her barracks, then brutally raped by, on informationand belief, several Halliburton/KBR firefighters, including defendant, CharlesBoartz, in her room in the barracks.  When she awoke the next morning stillaffected by the drug, she found her body naked and severely bruised, withlacerations to her vagina and anus, blood running down her leg, her breast implantswere ruptured, and her pectoral muscles torn – which would later requirereconstructive surgery.  Upon walking to the restroom, she passed out again.When she returned to the living area, she found Charles Boartz lying in her bottombunk of her bed.  She asked him what had happened, and he confessed to havingunprotected sex with her.  Jamie reported the rape to the Pete Arroyo, one of theoperations personnel, who then took her to KBR medical personnel. The U.S. StateDepartment Diplomatic Security was informed and a rape kit was administered at
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the combat area surgical hospital run by the U.S. Army.  20. In an obvious attempt to keep this violent crime a secret, and tominimize exposure, Halliburton then locked Jamie in a container, and denied heraccess to an outside phone line.  Jamie was able to convince one of her armedguards to allow her one phone call home.  Her father, upon learning of Jamie’ssituation, contacted his congressman, Ted Poe, who was then able to facilitateJamie’s release. 21. While Jamie was living and working at Camp Hope, the entire facilitywas under the direct control and authority of the U.S. Department of State, U.S.Department of Defense, KBR, and Halliburton, collectively.   22. As a result of the aforementioned, tolerated abusive behavior, sexualharassment, and ultimate rape, Jamie has suffered significant harm as set forthherein.  
LEGAL THEORIES AND CAUSES OF ACTION23. Defendants, HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBRTECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR, OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVESERVICES, LTD., CHARLES BOARTZ, and the JOHN DOE RAPISTS are liable
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under one or more different, alternative theories of liability recognized underTexas, and federal, law. COUNT INEGLIGENCE OFDEFENDANTS, HALLIBURTON AND KBR  24. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:25. Jamie will plead and will prove that at all times her conduct wasprofessional and in no way contributed to and/or caused the hostile workenvironment in which defendants placed her, or the unwelcomed sexualharassment and physical attacks on her person.  Jamie, as a female employee isprotected against sexual harassment under federal law.  At all times prior to theassault, Defendants were placed on actual and/or constructive notice of the hostileand sexually charged environment, and of the sexual harassment and concernsregarding the unsafe living conditions of Jamie, in particular.  They were,additionally, warned of the foreseeable impending dangers.  The harassment,sexual abuse, and sexual assault have negatively impacted the terms, conditions,and privileges associated with Jamie’s employment, and continue to do so.  Jamiehas suffered debilitating, and permanent injuries for which Defendants herein areresponsible. 
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26. Pleading further, Jamie will show that Defendants, jointly andseverally, are responsible for several acts of negligence which were a cause of theincidents, subsequent injuries and damages suffered by them.Such acts of negligence include, but are not limited to:(a) Failing to exercise ordinary or reasonable care in hiring, training,supervising and maintaining their employees, servants, agents, officers andrepresentatives;(b) Failing to exercise ordinary or reasonable care in providing a safeworking environment;(c) Failing to exercise ordinary or reasonable care in providing a safeliving environment;(d) Failing to exercise ordinary or reasonable care in responding torequests of its residents, employees, servants, agents, officers and representatives,specifically Jamie’s requests to be moved to a safer environment; (e) Failing to recognize, implement and adhere to applicable rules andregulations pertaining to their employees, servants, agents, officers andrepresentatives and their work environments, including permitting alcoholicbeverages on the premises with co-ed barracks, with knowledge of the dangerscreated by its consumption; the failure to provide separate living quarters for male
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and female residents, and others; (f) Failing to provide proper, adequate and sufficient protection to Jamieat her living quarters in Iraq;(g) Failing to properly supervise the project in question;(h) Failing to properly supervise the premises in question;(i) Failing to warn Jamie of the inherent dangers of her livingenvironment;(j) Failing to devise a proper policy or plan for placement of females intheir working and/or living environment;(k) Failing to respond in a timely and appropriate manner, despite actualand/or constructive knowledge of the on-going sexually-charged environment andthe sexual harassment which permeated Halliburton/KBR’s Iraq premises;(l) Failing to supervise employees so as to prevent attacks such as Jamiesuffered.27. Jamie would show, in the alternative, without waiving the above, thatDefendants, HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN &ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC. and KBR were the occupier/general contractor of the premises inquestion and that as the occupier/general contractor, the Halliburton Defendants



15

owed a duty to Jamie to warn of and/or correct hidden dangers.  Further,Defendants had actual knowledge of the condition that posed an unreasonable riskof harm to Jamie, and other women in her circumstances.  Defendants had a duty totake reasonably prudent precautions under the circumstances to reduce or toeliminate the unreasonable risk from that condition and Defendants failed to do so.28. Pleading further Jamie would show that Defendants HALLIBURTONCOMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN &ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR andOVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD., were involved in a jointenterprise as that term is defined in law.  At all times relevant hereto, theHalliburton Defendants had an agreement, either express or implied, with respectto the recruitment, training, placement, construction, employment and policies andprocedures that entail work in Iraq for the employees of OVERSEASADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD.  Further, they had a common purpose anda common business or pecuniary interest with an equal right to direct and controlthe enterprise.  For the purpose set forth herein, HALLIBURTON COMPANYd/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOTSERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR and OVERSEASADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD.  , are jointly and severally responsible for
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the injuries and damages sustained by Jamie.29. Defendants are jointly and severally responsible for the acts andomissions in this co-venture.  Furthermore, the Defendants are responsible for theacts and omissions of their employees, servants, agents, officers andrepresentatives including, without limitation, under the doctrine of respondeatsuperior, agency and non-delegable duty.30. At the time of the incident giving rise to Jamie’s claims, she was ahealthy, employable human being with a life expectancy of 62.3 years, accordingto recent Life Tables published by the United States Census Bureau, a copy ofwhich will be used at trial. According to the U.S. Labor Department table, Plaintiffhad an average work life expectancy of 45 years until the age of 65, a copy ofwhich will be used at trial. 31. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. COUNT IINEGLIGENT UNDERTAKING OFDEFENDANT, HALLIBURTON, KBR AND OAS 32. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:
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33. Jamie would also show that Defendants HALLIBURTONCOMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN &ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR ANDOVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD., and the employees,servants, agents, officers and representatives of each, negligently undertook toprovide proper training, adequate and sufficient safety precautions, adequate andsufficient policies and procedures in the recruitment, training and placement ofpersonnel in Iraq and therefore, owed a duty to Jamie pursuant to common law and§ 323 of the Restatement (Second) of Torts.  To wit:One who undertakes, gratuitously, or forconsideration, to render services to another whichhe should recognize as necessary for the protectionof the other person or things, is subject to liabilityto the other for physical harm resulting from thisfailure to exercise care to perform his undertaking,if:a. his failure to exercise such care increases therisk of such harm, orb. the harm is suffered because of the other’s reliance upon the undertaking. As such, Halliburton/KBR and KBR owed a non-delegable duty to Jamie tokeep her safe from harm and/or injury.  Defendant’s breached their non-delegableduty which it owed to Jamie to keep her safe from harm and/or injury bypermitting its employees to possess, maintain, and consume substantial amounts of
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alcohol, and by failing to provide adequate security measures and/or personnel toprotect Jamie.  34. As a proximate result of the negligent acts and omissions describedherein, Defendants, HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBRTECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVESERVICES, LTD.  breached these duties, resulting in injuries and damages toJamie. 35. Defendants, HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBRTECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVESERVICES, LTD.  breached their respective duties owed to Jamie by allowing her,without warning or correction, to enter into, work in, and be housed in, an unsafeand hostile area (in this instance, hostile from “friendly”, rather that enemy forces).This breach was a proximate cause of Jamie’s injuries set forth below.  Saiddefendants were negligent in that, inter alia:a) They failed to properly investigate the history of Jamie’s assailantsprior to hiring them when they should have known, or did know, of the assailants’criminal and/or violent propensities; 
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b) They failed to properly supervise the assailants in the course andscope of their duties so as to prevent them from unlawfully acting upon thosesexual and/or violent propensities; c) They failed to properly supervise these assailants so as to preventthem from possessing, storing, and consuming substantial quantities of alcohol; d) They failed to further investigate, reassign, and/or discharge theseassailants (including Charles Boartz) when they should have known that they wereunfit and unsafe employees; e) They permitted these rapists to remain in the barracks in closeproximity to, and with easy access to victims such as Jamie, which resulted in thebrutal attack set forth in this complaint.  36. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. COUNT IIINEGLIGENCE OFUNITED STATES OF AMERICA 37. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:38. Defendant, The United States Government voluntarily entered Iraq,
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destroyed its infrastructure, including its court system, and continues to own,occupy, manage, and control United States military bases, at which the governmentinvites United States civilian contractors live and work under the protection of theUnited States military.  Nevertheless, the United States failed to provide a livingand working environment, that was reasonably safe from the sexual and otherphysical attacks of its own citizens and/or employees by other United Statescitizens/employees and/or contractors at Camp Hope, in Baghdad, Iraq, in violationof the Civil Rights Act of 1964 §703(a), 42 U.S.C.A. § 2000e-2(a), includingfailing to maintain adequate security measures at facilities intended to housefemale non-combatants.  39. Jamie pleads and will prove that at all times her conduct wasprofessional and in no way contributed to and/or caused the hostile workenvironment in which the United States placed her, or the unwelcomed sexualharassment and sexual assault on her person.  Jamie, as a female employee isprotected against sexual harassment under federal law.  At all times prior to theassault, Defendants were placed on actual and/or constructive notice of the hostileand sexually charged working and living environments, and the sexual harassmentof Jamie, in particular.  They were, additionally, warned of the foreseeableimpending dangers.  The harassment and sexual abuse has negatively impacted the
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terms, conditions, and privileges associated with Jamie’s employment, andcontinue to do so.  Jamie has suffered debilitating, and permanent injuries forwhich Defendants herein are responsible.40. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. COUNT IVSEXUAL HARASSMENT AND HOSTILE WORK ENVIRONMENTCREATED BY DEFENDANT, HALLIBURTON, KBR AND OAS 41. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:42. Pleading in the alternative without waiving the above allegations andwhile incorporating the factual allegations stated herein above, Jamie would showthat during her employment in Iraq, she was subject to and the target of sexualharassment by employees, agents and/or ostensible agents or employees ofHALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT,KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,LTD.   The sexual harassment was both verbal and abusive.  Jamie’s conduct wasprofessional and in no way contributed to and/or caused the hostile working/living
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environment in which Halliburton/KBR and KBR placed her, or the unwelcomedsexual harassment and physical assault on her person.  Jamie, as a female employeeis protected against sexual harassment under federal law.  At all times prior to theassault, Defendants were placed on actual and/or constructive notice of the hostileand sexually charged environment, and the sexual harassment of Jamie, inparticular.  They were, additionally, warned of the foreseeable impending dangers.The harassment and sexual abuse has negatively impacted the terms, conditions,and privileges associated with Jamie’s employment, and continue to do so.  Jamiehas suffered debilitating, and permanent injuries for which Defendants herein areresponsible.43. Because this environment of harassment was allowed and/orencouraged to exist unchecked, it created an atmosphere physically threatening toJamie.  Defendants conduct (or lack thereof) created and fostered a sense ofsuperiority to male supervisors and others which allowed them to harass and abusepersons such as Jamie, in violation of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 §703(a), 42U.S.C.A. § 2000e-2(a).44. This environment allowed, caused and/or contributed to the eventualphysical assault upon Jamie, which caused both the extreme physical andemotional damages with which Jamie continues to suffer.
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45. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. COUNT VRETALIATION BY DEFENDANT, HALLIBURTON, KBR AND SEII 46. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:47. Pleading in the alternative and without waiving the above allegationsand while incorporating the factual allegations stated herein above, Jamie wouldshow that while she actively pursued a solution to the sexual harassment andhostile work environment she received little or no help. In fact, she was ridiculed,threatened and harassed because of her requests to Eric Iler that he stop forcing herto have the sexual relationship with him, as more specifically stated herein above.And when she finally escaped his supervision, he provided a false report of herperformance to her new supervisor.  Because of the retaliation on the part of theDefendant, Jamie seeks all remedies set forth herein below.48. Jamie would show that HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBRKELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES,INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. and KBR exercised significant control
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over the actions of her employer, OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,LTD., and that Halliburton/KBR and KBR through its employees, including EricIler, used its influence to retaliate against Jamie’s reports of harassment and hostilework environment above. 49. Jamie would further show that, after she reported the rape incident toher supervisors, HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN& ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC, KBR, and OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICESretaliated against her in the following manner:a. Immediately following her physical examination, she was placed in atrailer with a bed, a shower and a sink, but without a television, and was refusedphone calls to her family despite repeated requests, which amounted to a falseimprisonment; b. She was confronted by KBR supervisors, who gave her two options:i. Stay and “get over it”; or ii. Return home without the “guarantee” of a job on return.These options amounted to an unlawful threat to terminate her job forreporting her attack, and dealing with its aftermath. c. Ultimately, Jamie was able to convince a guard to let her call herfather on his cellular phone.  Jamie’s father was then able to enlist congressional
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assistance to get his daughter home. 50. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00.
COUNT VIAGENCY, JOINT VENTURE, JOINT ENTERPRISE, DIRECTCORPORATE LIABILITY

51. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:52. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN &ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,LTD.   are vicariously liable for the conduct of their employees, agents andostensible agents, including Eric Iler, Charles Boartz, the “John Doe Rapists” andothers, under theories of actual agency, apparent agency, ostensible agency, andagency by estoppel.  53. In the alternative, HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBRKELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES,INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS
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ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD., their employees, agents and ostensibleagents, engaged in joint ventures, joint enterprises, and/or are liable under thedirect corporate liability theory, and/or are liable under the theory of respondeatsuperior.  54. Defendants’ conduct was unreasonable, or negligent, and was aproximate cause of Jamie Jones’ sexual harassment, sexually hostile workenvironment, and sexual assault.  The negligence includes failure to comply withcompany policies regarding sexual misconduct, failure to comply with federal lawregarding sexual harassment and sexually charged work place, failure to preventretaliatory behavior following a complaint by the victim, negligentmisrepresentations, and covering up the allegations by failing to assist with theinvestigation of same.55. Defendants are liable for breach of express and implied warranties,which breach is cognizable, not only under the common law, but also via the TexasDeceptive Trade Practices Act.56. All theories of liability and recovery are pled cumulatively andalternatively, with no election of remedies until such time as the trier of fact hasresolved disputed issues of fact and the Court compels such an election, if, in fact,the Court does so.
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57. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00.
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COUNT VIIBREACH OF CONTRACT
58. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:
59. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN &ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,LTD.   breached their contract of employment with Jamie in each of the followingparticulars: a. The “Employment Agreement” between Service OVERSEASADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD.   was executed on July21, 2005 purports to cover the employment-related mattersbetween the Plaintiff and OAS; b. OAS and/or the other defendants named herein breached thespecific and implied warranties of security against violations ofsecurity rules as set forth by paragraph 15 (a) of theEmployment Agreement; c. OAS and/or the other defendants named herein breached thespecific and implied warranties of protection against violations
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of Corporate Policies regarding Standards of Conduct as setforth by paragraph 16 of the Employment Agreement;d. OAS and/or the other defendants named herein breached thespecific and implied warranties of protection against violationsof Project and/or Work Location Policies regarding Standardsof Conduct as set forth by paragraph 16(a) of the EmploymentAgreement;e. OAS and/or the other defendants named herein breached thespecific and implied warranties of protection againstmisconduct of other employees as set forth by paragraph 16(b)of the Employment Agreement;f. OAS and/or the other defendants named herein breached thespecific and implied warranties of protection against IllegalActions as set forth by paragraph 16(m) of the EmploymentAgreement;g. OAS and/or the other defendants named herein breached thespecific and implied warranties of protection against SexualHarassment as set forth by paragraph 16(n) of the EmploymentAgreement;
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h. OAS and/or the other defendants named herein breached thespecific and implied warranties of protection against sexualadvances by an employee within the chain of command orsphere of influence of Jamie as set forth by paragraph 16(p) ofthe Employment Agreement.60. As a direct result of the aforesaid breaches of the EmploymentAgreement, Jamie was enticed to travel into Baghdad, Iraq, and to place her personin harm’s way from the very people who were purported to be working on “herside.”  Therefore, she was harmed, as set forth herein. 61. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. COUNT VIIIFRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT TO ENTER THE EMPLOYMENTCONTRACT
62. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:
63. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN &ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,
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LTD.   fraudulently induced Jamie to enter into the contract of employment withOAS on July 21, 2005, by misleading her inter alia in each of the followingparticulars: a. At all times relevant to the discussion leading up to theexecution of the employment contract in this case, and at thetime of its execution, HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBRKELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN &ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES,INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVESERVICES, LTD.  were aware of the repeated sexual attacks,sexual harassment and mistreatment of women in and aroundBaghdad, Iraq, by United States citizens in general, and its ownemployees, in particular, yet actively concealed this fact fromwomen who were being asked to serve in that arena,particularly, Jamie; b. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOTSERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.,KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,
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LTD. each knew that personal safety was an issue that wouldhave been significant to any applicant for service in Iraq,particularly Jamie Jones, and that the concealed knowledgewould likely have prevented women in general, and JamieJones, in particular, from entering into a contract ofemployment which required her to go to Iraq under thoseconditions; c. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOTSERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.,KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,LTD. each actively concealed knowledge of the dangers ofsexual harassment, assault, rape, and other related acts fromwomen who were enticed to travel, unprotected and unprepared,into this hostile environment; d. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOTSERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.,KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,
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LTD. each participated in presenting a contract of employment,along with a pamphlet for outlining grievance procedures andcomplaints, in a knowing and active inducement to women ingeneral, and Jamie in particular, to execute a contract to acceptdangerous employment, while having full knowledge of thedangers from its own employees, and concealing that fact; e. The “Employment Agreement” between Service OVERSEASADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD. purports to cover theemployment-related matters between the Plaintiff and OAS;yet, despite the knowledge of HALLIBURTON COMPANYd/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALS E R V I C E S ,  I N C . ,  K B R ,  A N D  O V E R S E A SADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD. that women werebeing raped and assaulted by Halliburton employees and/orthose of its subsidiaries in Iraq, such acts were specificallyomitted from the contract of employment as a known andforeseeable risk, in an active effort to conceal the very nature of
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the working and living environment into which women such asJamie, and Jamie herself, would be thrust;f. Jamie Jones relied upon the misrepresentations of fact regardingthe safety measures for women in Iraq (at least as theypertained to her fellow countrymen in general, and her co-workers, in particular) when she entered into the contract ofJuly 21, 2005;g. If the true nature of the employment had been made known toJamie, she would not have executed the contract, would nothave been sent to Iraq, would not have been brutally raped bythe Halliburton employees in Baghdad, and would not havesuffered the injuries enumerated in this complaint.64. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. COUNT IXFRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT TO AGREE TO ARBITRATION
65. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:
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66. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN &ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC., KBR and OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD.fraudulently induced Jamie to agree to a “mandatory arbitration provision”, bymisleading her inter alia in each of the following particulars:a. At all times relevant to the discussion leading up to theexecution of the “mandatory arbitration provision” in this case,and at the time of its execution, HALLIBURTON COMPANYd/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC., KBR and OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVESERVICES, LTD.were aware of the repeated sexual attacks,sexual harassment and mistreatment of women in and aroundBaghdad, Iraq, by United States citizens in general, and its ownemployees, in particular, yet actively concealed and/or failed todisclose this fact from women who were being asked to serve inthat arena, particularly, Jamie; b. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT
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SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBRand OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD. eachknew that personal safety was an issue that would have beensignificant to any applicant for service in Iraq, particularlyJamie Jones, and that the concealed knowledge would likelyhave prevented women in general, and Jamie, in particular,from agreeing to a “mandatory arbitration provision” underthose conditions; c. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOTSERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBRand OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD.  eachactively concealed knowledge of the dangers of sexualharassment, assault, rape, and other related acts from womenwho were enticed to travel, unprotected and unprepared, intothis hostile environment, and then agree to a “mandatoryarbitration provision” in the event of such events recurrence; d. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG,BROWN & ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT
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SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBRand OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD. eachparticipated in presenting a “mandatory arbitration provision”,along with a pamphlet for outlining grievance procedures andcomplaints, in a knowing and active inducement to women ingeneral, and Jamie in particular, to agree to “mandatoryarbitration provision” when only the defendants were aware ofthe dangerous nature of the employment its own employees,and while concealing that fact; e. The “mandatory arbitration provision” between ServiceOVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD.purportsto cover the “employment-related” matters between the Jamieand OAS; yet, despite the knowledge of HALLIBURTONCOMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT,KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBRTECHNICAL SERVICES, INC., KBR and OVERSEASADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD. that women werebeing raped and assaulted by Halliburton employees and/orthose of its subsidiaries in Iraq, such acts were specifically
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omitted from the parameters of the “mandatory arbitrationprovision” as these known and foreseeable risks regarding thevery nature of the working and living environment into whichwomen such as Jamie, and Jamie herself, would be thrust, wereactively concealed;f. Jamie Jones relied upon the misrepresentations of fact regardingthe safety measures for women in Iraq (at least as theypertained to her fellow countrymen in general, and her co-workers, in particular) when she agreed to the “mandatoryarbitration provision” on July 21, 2005;g. If the true nature of the risk had been made known to Jamie, shewould not have executed the “mandatory arbitration provision”,would not have been sent to Iraq, would not have beensubjected to the severe and brutal rape by fellow Halliburtonemployees, acting with impunity from this company as set forthin this complaint.67. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00.
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COUNT XASSAULT AND BATTERY- CHARLES BOARTZ AND SEVERAL JOHNDOE RAPISTS68. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:69. CHARLES BOARTZ AND SEVERAL JOHN DOE RAPISTS,conspired to drug Jamie with the intent of raping her once she becameunconscious.  70. CHARLES BOARTZ AND SEVERL JOHN DOERAPISTS raped Jamie while she was unconscious and incapable of consenting tosaid forcible acts of sexual intercourse, sodomy, and brutality.  71. Defendants’ acts were intentional, outrageous, reckless and withmalice.72. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. COUNT XIINTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
73. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:
74. HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG, BROWN &
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ROOT, KELLOGG, BROWN & ROOT SERVICES, INC., KBR TECHNICALSERVICES, INC., KBR, AND OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES,LTD.   each acted (as set forth herein) intentionally and/or recklessly, in a mannerwhich was extreme and outrageous under the circumstances, and which causedsevere emotional distress to Jamie. 75. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00.
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COUNT XIIINTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS – ERICEILER
76. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:
77. ERIC EILER acted (as set forth herein) intentionally and/orrecklessly, in a manner which was extreme and outrageous under the circumstancesby forcing her to engage in a sexual relationship with him or face losing her job ata time when her income was necessary to support her incapacitated mother, all ofwhich was known to Eric Eiler, and which caused severe emotional distress toJamie. 78. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. PROXIMATE CAUSE79. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further alleges as follows:80. Each and every of the foregoing acts and omissions, individually andcollectively on the part of Defendants, taken separately and/or collectively, jointlyand/or severally, constitute a direct and proximate cause of the injuries and
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damages set forth below.81. As a direct and proximate result of the allegations contained herein,Jamie has suffered the damages set forth more fully herein, all of which are inexcess of $100,000.00. DAMAGES AND REMEDIES82. Jamie hereby incorporates all paragraphs of this Complaint into thisCount, as if they were fully alleged herein, and further allege as follows:83. As a direct and proximate result of the aforementioned abuse,harassment and attacks on the part of these defendants, jointly and severally, JamieJones was caused to suffer serious injuries. As a result of same, Jamie has sufferedthe following damages:a. Reasonable medical care and expenses in the past. Theseexpenses were incurred by Jamie for the necessary care andtreatment of the injuries resulting from the incident complainedof herein, and such charges are reasonable and were usual andcustomary charges for such services;b. Reasonable and necessary medical care and expenses whichwill, in all reasonable probability, be incurred in the future. c. Physical pain and suffering in the past;
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d. Mental anguish in the past;e. Physical pain and suffering in the future;f. Mental anguish in the future;g. Physical impairment and disfigurement in the past;h. Physical impairment and disfigurement which, in all reasonableprobability, will be suffered in the future. i. Loss of earnings in the past;j. Loss of earning capacity which will be, in all probability,incurred in the future;k. Fear of a future disease condition;l. Cost of medical monitoring and prevention in the future.
GROSS NEGLIGENCE/EXEMPLARY DAMAGES84. Jamie re-alleges and incorporates each allegation contained inParagraphs hereinabove of this Petition as fully set forth herein.Withou8t5 w. aiving the foregoing, Jamie seeks exemplary damages pursuant to Texas CivilPractices and Remedies Code §41.003(3) and pursuant to the definition of “GrossNegligence” as provided in §41.001(11)(A) and (B).  Specifically, defendants,HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG BROWN & ROOT (KBR);
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KELLOGG BROWN & ROOT SERVICES CORPORATION, INC.; KBRTECHNICAL SERVICES, INC.; KBR, OVERSEAS ADMINISTRATIVESECRHVAICRELSE, SL TBDO.A; ERRTIZC;  SILEEVRE,RAL JOHN DOE RAPISTS; completely, recklessly,maliciously, and/or with conscious or reckless indifference, ignored the probabilityand magnitude of the potential harm to others, including Jamie Jones, by creating thehostile, sexually charged work environment and living conditions for women in Iraq,and for its handling of her complaints.  When viewed objectively from thestandpoint of HALLIBURTON COMPANY d/b/a KBR KELLOGG BROWN &ROOT (KBR); KELLOGG BROWN & ROOT SERVICES CORPORATION,INC.; KBR TECH NICA L SERVICES, INC.; KBR; OVERSEASADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LTD.; ERIC ILER, CHARLES BOARTZ;SEVERAL JOHN DOE RAPISTS; at the time of their acts and omissions involvedan extreme degree of risk, considering the probability and magnitude of thepotential harm to others, including Jamie Jones.  Furthermore, each defendantnamed herein had actual, subjective awareness of the risk involved, butnevertheless proceeded with conscious indifferences to the rights, safety andwelfare of others, including Jamie. 86. As a result of the gross neglect and legal malice of each of the nameddefendants, Jamie seeks an award of exemplary damages under TEX. LAB. CODE
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§408.001(b) and Article 16, Section 26 of the Texas Constitution.87. Defendants knowingly, and with wanton disregard for the welfare ofJamie Jones, ignored her complaints, failed to investigate her reports of misconduct,and instead retaliated against her for having attempted to better her working andliving conditions. In doing so, they placed Jamie at an extreme degree of risk ofcontinued sexual harassment and sexual assault in the context of “boys will be boys,”considering the probability and magnitude of the potential harm to her, which, whenviewed objectively from the standpoint of the reasonable person was foreseeable atthe time they ignored her complaints.  88. Defendants’ negligent acts and/or omissions, individually and jointly,constituted a conscious disregard of an extreme degree of risk, all of which led to theJamie’s injuries and damages. 89. If the trier of fact finds the requisite degree of culpability required byTexas law for an assessment of punitive or exemplary damages, Plaintiffs seeksuch an award as is right and just.90. Plaintiffs are also entitled to recover prejudgment interest and costs ofcourt. JURY DEMAND
91. Plaintiff hereby invokes her right to trial by jury.
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that the Defendants be cited to appear andanswer herein, and that, after a trial, they receive such monetary damages, bothactual and exemplary, and other relief as is sought herein and appropriate under thelaw and the facts. Respectfully submitted,/s/ L. Todd KellyTHE KELLY LAW FIRM, P.C.L. Todd KellyTexas Bar No. 24035049Heidi O. VicknairTexas Bar No. 24046557One Riverway, Suite 1150Houston, Texas 77056Tel. (713) 255-2055Fax. (713) 523-5939Paul WaldnerVICKERY, WALDNER & MALLIA, L.L.C.Texas Bar No. 20679800One Riverway, Suite 1150Houston, Texas 77056Tel. (713) 526-1100Fax. (713) 523-5939& Stephanie M. MorrisATTORNEY AT LAWMember of D.C. and PA. Bars1660 L. Street, N.W., Suite 506Washington, D.C. 20036Tel. (202) 536-3353Fax. (202) 463-6328ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF, JAMIE JONES 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICEI hereby certify that all counsel of record were served with true and correct copiesof the attached Third Amended Complaint by ECF on this 9  day of October,th2007:
/s/ L. Todd Kelly
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